
          

 

 

TERRACINA 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

PALM BEACH COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

& PUBLIC HEARING 
JULY 10, 2023 

9:00 A.M. 
 

 

 
 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.terracinacdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 

 

AGENDA 
TERRACINA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT  

Meeting Room of the Nexus at Vista Park 
2101 Vista Parkway 

West Palm Beach, Florida 33411 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING & PUBLIC HEARING 

July 10, 2023 
9:00 a.m. 

 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………...Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes  

1. June 12, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes……………………………………...............Page 2 

G. Public Hearing 

1. Proof of Publication…………………………………………………………………………..Page 5 

2. Receive Public Comments on Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Final Budget 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2023-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Final Budget……...Page 6 

H. Old Business 

1. Update on Lake Erosion & Outfall Project from Allstate 

2. Consider Approval of Irrigation & Permitting Proposal…………………………………….Page 13 

3. Consider Allstate’s Shoreline Restoration & Erosion Control Proposal 
(Recommendation from Engineer’s Report)………………………………………………...Page 22 

4. Discussion Regarding POA Electrical Service to Fountains/Aerators in District Lakes 

I. New Business 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2023-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Meeting Schedule..Page 32 

2. Consider Resolution No. 2023-04 – Adopting a Records Retention Policy…………………Page 34 

3. Consider Appointment of Audit Committee & Approval of Evaluation Criteria……………Page 38 

J. Administrative Matters 

1. Financial Report……………………………………………………………………………...Page 42 

K. Board Members Comments 

L. Adjourn 

 

 



Page 1



 

Page 1 of 3 
 

TERRACINA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

JUNE 12, 2023 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The June 12, 2023, Regular Board Meeting of the Terracina Community Development District (the 
“District”) was called to order at 9:01 a.m. in a Meeting Room of the Nexus at Vista Park located at 
2101 Vista Parkway, West Palm Beach, Florida 33411. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented indicating that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in The Palm Beach Post on September 30, 2022, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 
2022/2023 Regular Meeting Schedule, as legally required.  
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM  
 
Present and constituting a quorum were Chairman Guy Colella, Vice Chairman Chesley Saunders and 
Supervisors Sheik Ameer (who arrived at 9:03 a.m.), Linda Colella and Jose Esquerte and all was in 
order to proceed with the meeting. 
 
Staff present were: District Manager Sylvia Bethel of Special District Services, Inc.; and General 
Counsel Frank Palen of Caldwell Pacetti Edwards Schoech & Viator LLP. 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  May 8, 2023, Regular Board Meeting 
 
The minutes of the May 8, 2023, Regular Board Meeting were presented and the Board was asked if 
there were any comments or questions. 
 
Mrs. Colella noted that the word “in” was missing in Section I – Administrative Matters #1 Financial 
Report.  Ms. Bethel indicated she would make that correction. 
 
A motion was then made by Mrs. Colella, seconded by Mr. Esquerete and passed unanimously 
approving the minutes of the May 8, 2023, Regular Board Meeting, as amended. 
 
G. OLD BUSINESS 
 1.  Discussion Regarding Lake Maintenance Proposals 
 

Page 2



 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Ms. Bethel indicated she knew the Board wanted to hold off on this item at last meeting and wanted to 
know if the Board still wanted to keep it on hold for now.  Mr. Colella indicated that he believed they 
should hold off for a while, but since it is in the meeting booklet, the Board should discuss the item. 
Mr. Ameer stated he agreed and thinks the Board should hold off.  He met with Allstate and they 
promised to correct their concerns.  Ms. Bethel stated she would take this off the agenda until the 
Board advises her to bring it back. 
 
 2.  Update on Lake Erosion from Allstate 
 
Ms. Bethel stated she had spoken with Allstate and the report has not yet been completed, but it is 
scheduled.  The department that handles projects such as this is behind and it should be done by mid 
and/or late June.  Mr. Ameer suggested he get a proposal from the new landscaper for the other erosion 
issues, since it could be cheaper.  Mrs. Colella asked if it would be done professionally,  Mr. Ameer 
indicated that it would and Mrs. Colella agreed that it would not hurt to get an additional proposal.  Mr. 
Colella stated he would like an ETA of when this project would be completed.  Ms. Bethel advised she 
would get an exact date and ask them to rope off the section again.  
 
H. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Consider Irrigation & Permitting Proposal 
 
Ms. Bethel stated she and Mr. Jackson had met with Cotleur and Hearing regarding a well recharging 
station and directed the Board to Page 27 of the meeting book for discussion.  A lengthy discussion 
ensued.  The Board would like to know the overall cost of what it would cost, including an operational 
and maintenance cost before moving forward.  The Board would also like staff to email that 
information to everyone and bring the current information back to the next meeting. 
 
 2.  Consider Allstate’s Proposals from Engineer’s Report 
 
Ms. Bethel advised that Allstate had provided a few proposals based on the suggestion in the 
Engineer’s Report and directed the Board’s attention to Page 36 of the meeting book.  A lengthy 
discussion ensued.  Mr. Colella indicated that the Board should get this resolved and determine the 
maintenance later.  Mr. Esquerete agreed.  Mr. Colella would also like an ETA on this project.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Esquerete, seconded by Mr. Ameer and unanimously passed approving 
Allstate’s proposal for the outfall pipe repair in the amount of $6,150, as presented. 
 
 3.  Discussion Regarding POA Electrical Service to Fountains/Aerators in District Lakes 
 
Ms. Bethel advised that she had received a letter from the HOA’s attorney regarding reimbursement of 
the cost for electrical usage for the District’s fountains.  Mr. Ameer previously spoke with Mr. Palen 
regarding this matter.  Mr. Palen stated that it was a reasonable request for the CDD to reimburse the 
cost of electrical service to the HOA, provided that such costs can be accounted for. A lengthy 
discussion ensued.  There is presently no documentation of how the electrical service system for the 
fountain/aerator was set up and currently operates.  Electrical usage should be separately metered, but 
that is not presently the case.  It is not clear where service lines are placed or if they were installed in 
the proper locations.  Mr. Palen spoke with District Engineer Keith Jackson regarding his suggestions 
on how to correct this situation in the most cost-effective manner.  Mr. Jackson suggested retaining an 
electrical engineer to start by mapping the existing electrical connection system.  Once the system has 
been properly documented, an electrical engineer could also generate a standard formula for allocating 
electrical usage based on kilowatt hours or a similar standard.  This would serve as an alternative to 

Page 3



 

Page 3 of 3 
 

installing meters on the various fountain/aerator service lines.  Retroactively metering the existing 
system would probably be a very expensive project.  A standard formula would be used as a 
reasonably accurate basis to reimburse the HOA for its expenses.  Once developed, the standard 
formula would be the basis for a proposed cost-sharing agreement with the HOA.  Mr. Palen stated he 
would reach out to Mr. Jackson to get an idea of how to proceed and will bring more information 
regarding this matter to the next meeting. 
 
I. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS  
 1.  Financial Report 
 
Ms. Bethel directed the Board’s attention to Page 27 of the meeting books and stated that she would 
like to give an update regarding Mr. Colella’s email concerning the fountain lights.  Fountain 3 and 4 
lights have been completed.  The HOA emailed regarding another issue concerning the timer and that 
information was sent it to Allstate to resolve, and I followed-up with no response.  Ms. Bethel will 
follow-up with them again.  Mr. Ameer stated that the Lake #6 fountain was rocking,  Ms. Bethel 
indicated she would send that information over to Allstate.  
 
J. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no further comments from the Board Members. 
  
K. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Mr. Esquerete, 
seconded by Mrs. Colella adjourning the Regular Board Meeting at 10:07 a.m.  Upon being put to a 
vote, the motion carried 5 to 0. 
 
 

 

 

 

_________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary    Chair/Vice-Chair 
 

Page 4



Miscellaneous Notices 
Published in The Palm Beach Post on June 27, 2023 

Location 
Palm Beach County, Florida 
Notice Text 
Notice of Public Hearing and Regular Board Meeting of the 
Terracina Community Development District The Board of Supervisors (the 
Board ) of the Terracina Community Development District (the District ) will 
hold a Public Hearing and Regular Board Meeting on July 10, 2023, at 9:00 
a.m., or as soon thereafter as can be heard, in a Meeting Room of The Nexus 
at Vista Park located at 2101 Vista Parkway, West Palm Beach, Florida 33411. 
The purpose of the Public Hearing is to receive public comment on the Fiscal 
Year 2023/2024 Proposed Final Budget of the District. The purpose of the 
Regular Board Meeting is for the Board to consider any other business which 
may properly come before it. A copy of the Budget and/or the Agenda may be 
obtained from the District s website or at the offices of the District Manager, 
Special District Services, Inc., 2501A Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 
33410, during normal business hours. The meetings are open to the public 
and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Florida law for 
community development districts. Meetings may be continued as found 
necessary to a time and place specified on the record. 
There may be occasions when one or more Supervisors will participate by 
telephone; therefore, a speaker telephone will be present at the meeting 
location so that Supervisors may be fully informed of the discussions taking 
place. 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any 
person requiring special accommodations or an interpreter to participate at 
these meetings should contact the District Manager at (561) 630-4922 and/or 
toll-free at 1-877-737- 4922, at least seven (7) days prior to the date of the 
meetings. 
If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter 
considered at this Public Hearing and Regular Board Meeting, such person will 
need a record of the proceedings and such person may need to ensure that a 
verbatim record of the proceedings is made at their own expense and which 
record includes the testimony and evidence on which the appeal is based. 
Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised notice. 
Terracina Community Development District 
www.terracinacdd.org 
June 20,27, 2023 8944013 
 

Page 5



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TERRACINA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT ADOPTING A FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024 BUDGET.  

 
 WHEREAS, the Terracina Community Development District (“District”) has prepared a 
Proposed Budget and Final Special Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2023/2024 and has held a 
duly advertised Public Hearing to receive public comments on the Proposed Budget and Final 
Special Assessment Roll; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, following the Public Hearing and the adoption of the Proposed Budget and 
Final Assessment Roll, the District is now authorized to levy non ad-valorem assessments upon 
the properties within the District. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE TERRACINA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT THAT:  
 
 Section 1. The Final Budget and Final Special Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is approved and adopted, and the assessments 
set forth therein shall be levied. 
 
 Section 2. The Secretary of the District is authorized to execute any and all necessary 
transmittals, certifications or other acknowledgements or writings, as necessary, to comply with 
the intent of this Resolution. 
  

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 10th day of July, 2023. 
 

 
ATTEST: TERRACINA 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 
 

Page 6



    Terracina
  Community Development District

          Final Budget For
          Fiscal Year 2023/2024

          October 1, 2023 - September 30, 2024

Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Proposal No: P23-270 

                                        Initial: CH_______ Client: _______ 

June 1, 2023

Via E-mail (awilbur@cotleur-hearing.com) 

Terracina Homeowners Association
Special Districts Services, Inc.
Attn: Sylvia Bethel
2501 Burns Rd., Suite A
Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 

Re:   Terracina Irrigation and SFWMD Permitting Proposal (P23-270)   

Dear Sylvia,

It was a pleasure discussing the required modifications to the Terracina irrigation system to provide 
supplemental recharge wells. As requested, Cotleur & Hearing will provide professional services 
required to review the existing irrigation systems, prepare irrigation modification plans to include well(s) 
needed to maintain the lake levels at a sufficient level to support the irrigation demand, and to permit 
the modifications with the South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD) including the 
preparation of all documents, calculations, and applications required for the permit submittal. The initial
project effort includes data collection and a pre-application coordination meeting to determine the 
feasibility of subsequent steps.

To expedite processing, this Agreement is being sent electronically. Please sign and initial the 
Agreement on each page where indicated, complete the Client Billing Instructions, and return for
Cotleur & Hearing’s execution. A completed original will be emailed to you for your file.

After you have had the opportunity to review our proposal, should you have any questions, please do 
not hesitate to contact me at (561) 406-1011 or awilbur@cotleur-hearing.com. 

Very truly yours,
Cotleur & Hearing

Aaron Wilbur, PLA
Partner 

_________
Page 13



Terracina Irrigation and SFWMD Permitting Proposal (P23-270) 
June 1, 2023
Page 2 of 9 

Proposal No: P23-270 

                                   Initial: CH_______ Client: _______

C:\Users\awilbur\Dropbox\Work Tonight\Ads -Marketing Info - Proposals\P23-270 Terracina Irrigation and Permitting Proposal.doc

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Client:  Terracina Homeowners Association
Property Location: 6565 Del Verde Blvd
West Palm Beach, FL, 33413
Management By: Special Districts Services, Inc.
2501 Burns Rd., Suite A
Palm Beach Gardens, Florida, 33410

Proposal No: P23-270

Client Contact: Sylvia Bethel
Finance Accounting Specialist
Special Districts Services, Inc.
561-685-2003
sbethel@sdsinc.org  

Date:  June 1, 2023

Project Name and Location: Terracina Irrigation and SFWMD Permitting

Description of Services to be provided:  Prepare Irrigation modification plans and SFWMD Permitting 
for proposed wells.

Retainer:   $1,500   (Payable upon execution of this Agreement)   

Scope of Work:   
      

1. Due Diligence, Data Collection, and Field Review  Fee (not to exceed) – $1,200.00
Plus reimbursable expenses

Cotleur & Hearing will obtain existing Irrigation Plans (from client) and existing SFWMD Water 
Use Permits and review them for complete and accurate information needed for design and 
permitting efforts. Obtain Irrigation Plans provided by client. As-built irrigation plans are 
required for permitting efforts. If as-built plans are not available, see the optional services listed 
below. Cotleur & Hearing will coordinate and attend a pre-application meeting with SFWMD 
permit staff to discuss the modification of the existing permit and the addition of well(s) to the 
site’s irrigation system. Cotleur & Hearing will obtain tentative approval from SFWMD staff prior 
to completing subsequent phases of the project. Efforts will include a site visit to review existing 
systems, component locations, and lakes.

2. Irrigation Plans       Fee (not to exceed) – $5,600.00
Plus reimbursable expenses

Cotleur & Hearing will develop Irrigation Plans and Details (irrigation as-built CADD files or
survey files to be provided by the client) for the proposed well(s) adjacent to the existing ponds 
to provide a consistent water supply to meet the current demands of the community’s irrigation 
systems. Coordinate with Terracina to obtain the preferred pump manufacturer (match existing) 
and with the selected pump manufacturer for the pump station and well specifications. 
Coordinate with a local well driller to determine the recommended depth of wells for this 
location. Existing systems are to remain as is. Plans and details will only be provided for the new 
well(s) to support and offset the demands of the existing systems. Coordinate with the electrical 
engineer to prepare plans and calculations for the electrical connections for the proposed pump 
stations. Pump station locations shall be generally located adjacent to the existing pumps to 
potentially utilize the current site electrical connections. 

_______ 

f

Page 14



Terracina Irrigation and SFWMD Permitting Proposal (P23-270) 
June 1, 2023
Page 3 of 9 

Proposal No: P23-270 

                                   Initial: CH_______ Client: _______

C:\Users\awilbur\Dropbox\Work Tonight\Ads -Marketing Info - Proposals\P23-270 Terracina Irrigation and Permitting Proposal.doc

3. SFWMD Consumptive Water Use Permit Modification  Fee (not to exceed) – $1,600.00
Plus reimbursable expenses

Based on the initial pre-application meeting, Cotleur & Hearing will prepare and submit a permit 
modification submittal through SFWMD E-Permitting. This effort includes obtaining the existing 
permit number and submitting for a permit modification providing all required exhibits, maps, 
documents, calculations, and information as required. Cotleur & Hearing will provide all post-
submittal coordination and revisions required for permit approval and execution. 

4. Minor Site Plan Amendment (Optional Services)  Fee (Hourly) – TBD
Plus reimbursable expenses

Cotleur & Hearing will amend the approved PUD Site Plan and Irrigation Plans as needed to 
include the additional well locations. Cotleur & Hearing will coordinate with the governing 
agency to determine the submittal requirements for the minor site plan amendment and 
prepare all required plans, applications, and narratives as needed. Obtain approved Site Plan. All 
building permits, well permits, and Health Department permits are to be obtained by the 
contractor.

5. Irrigation As-Built Plans  (Optional Services)   Fee (Hourly) – TBD
        Plus reimbursable expenses
Cotleur & Hearing will assist the project team with the preparation of as-built irrigation plans in
locations near existing pump stations. Cotleur & Hearing will document the location and product 
information for all aboveground components to the extent needed to complete project 
objectives. Performance test the existing systems to document the locations of the existing 
irrigation heads to provide adjustments if impacted by the proposed construction.
        

The following services are not included, but may be required to support the proposed application:

1. Site and Topographic Survey. 
2. Landscape plan revisions.
3. Engineering Plans (Geotechnical, Civil, Drainage, or Electrical). 
4. Building Permits or Construction Administration Services. 

The undersigned agree to the attached General Conditions and Special Provisions which are incorporated
and made a part of this Agreement. Any additional requested services will be addressed in a separate 
agreement. 

Cotleur & Hearing            
(Consultant)      (Client)
        
       

Date:       Date:    
Signature:       Signature:

Aaron Wilbur, PLA            
Partner       Printed Name/Title 

Attachments: General Conditions/Special Provisions, Client Billing Instructions, Rate Schedule, W-9

_______ 

Consultant)   
  
 

6/1/2023

Page 15



Terracina Irrigation and SFWMD Permitting Proposal (P23-270) 
June 1, 2023
Page 4 of 9 

Proposal No: P23-270 

                                   Initial: CH_______ Client: _______

C:\Users\awilbur\Dropbox\Work Tonight\Ads -Marketing Info - Proposals\P23-270 Terracina Irrigation and Permitting Proposal.doc

CLIENT BILLING INSTRUCTIONS
FOR AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

The following billing information must be completed by the Client. Client must notify Consultant of any 
changes to this information within one billing cycle.

PROJECT & CONTACT INFORMATION

Project Name:  __________________________ 
Manager Name:      
Phone Number:      
E-mail Address:      

Accounting Contact:      
Phone Number:      
E-mail Address:     
   

BILLING INFORMATION VIA EMAIL
Original Invoice should be addressed as follows:
Client/Company Name:            
Attention:             
Email Address:   ___________________________________________________________
Additional Email Address: ___________________________________________________________  

BILLING INFORMATION VIA USPS 
Original Invoice should be addressed as follows:
Client/Company Name:            
Attention:             
Billing Address:             

INVOICE SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS/FORMATTING

Special Invoice Requirements:           
(Provide details/include copy)           

Project/P.O./Contract Number Reference:         

Comments:              

PAYMENT OPTIONS  
       (Please check appropriate box)

Check No.      
Note: Please include our invoice number on 
your check.

     

Direct Deposit/Wire Transfer 
Note: Please reference our project number when 
you set up the wire transfer. Bank info will be 
provided upon completion of form.

_______ 

k i I f P Page 16



Terracina Irrigation and SFWMD Permitting Proposal (P23-270) 
June 1, 2023
Page 5 of 9 

Proposal No: P23-270 

                                         Initial: CH_______ Client: _______

C:\Users\awilbur\Dropbox\Work Tonight\Ads -Marketing Info - Proposals\P23-270 Terracina Irrigation and Permitting Proposal.doc

GENERAL CONDITIONS - These general conditions are attached and 
made part of proposals and agreements for services by Cotleur & 
Hearing the Consultant.

1.0 Standard of Care - Consultant, providing services under the 
Agreement, will endeavor to perform in a manner consistent with the
degree of care and skill exercised by members of the same profession 
under similar current circumstances.

2.0 Ethics Compliance. Maintaining the highest ethical standards is a 
primary value of the Consultant. The consultant will endeavor to 
comply with local and county ethics laws including lobbyist 
registration. Lobbyist registration forms will be completed concurrent
with the signing of the Agreement. It will be the Client’s responsibility 
to disclose all principals entities related to scope of work to be 
performed as a part of the Agreement. The principal, together with 
the Consultant will provide an original signature on lobbyist 
registration forms where required. The Client and Principal shall notify 
the Consultant at such time the conditions of the Lobbyist registration 
have changed and or when the registration should be withdrawn. 

3.0 Basic Services - Consultant shall provide the mutually agreed-upon 
services outlined in the Agreement. Any services not specifically
outlined in the Agreement are specifically excluded from the scope of 
Consultant’s services. Consultant assumes no responsibility to perform
any services not specifically addressed in the Agreement.

4.0 Additional Services - a) If mutually agreed to in writing by the 
parties, in advance and/or as provided for herein, Consultant will
provide additional services, which shall be documented and appended 
hereto. Additional services are not included as part of the basic scope 
of services and shall be paid for by Client in addition to the payment
for basic services. Payment for additional services shall be in 
accordance with Consultant’s Rate Schedule, as provided for in Section 
5.0, Compensation, or as otherwise mutually agreed to by the parties.

b) Notwithstanding the above provisions, additional services that are 
required to perform time sensitive work efforts may be performed 
without further authorization unless otherwise stipulated within the 
special provisions of this agreement.  Services performed under this 
provision shall not exceed 5% of the basic scope of services.

5.0 Client Responsibilities - Client shall designate in writing, a person 
to act as his/her representative with respect to the services to be 
rendered under the Agreement. Client shall provide all criteria and 
information required for Consultant to perform services under the
Agreement. Client shall provide for access to and make all provisions 
for Consultant to enter upon public and private property as required 
to perform services under the Agreement.

6.0 Compensation - a) Monthly progress invoices for basic services 
and additional services will be submitted to Client by Consultant based
on percent complete for each project task. Hourly services shall be 
invoiced based on applicable hourly rates in accordance with the Rate 
Schedule which is subject to annual adjustment.

b) These invoices are due upon presentation and shall be considered 
past due if not paid within thirty (30) calendar days. 

c) In order to provide uninterrupted service by Consultant, Client is 
required to promptly pay submitted invoices. Client shall have a 
fourteen (14) day review period to request clarification or additional 
information regarding an invoice. If no request is made during the 
review period, the invoice is deemed approved and payment will be 
made in the full amount of the invoice. If payment in full is not 
received by Consultant within thirty (30) calendar days, all past due 
amounts shall bear interest at one and one-half (1.5) percent per 
month from said thirtieth (30th) day. 

d) If Client fails to make payments when due or otherwise breaches
the Agreement, Consultant may suspend performance of services with
seven (7) days written notice to Client. Consultant shall have no 
liability whatsoever to Client for any costs or damages whatsoever as a 
result of such suspension caused by any breach of the Agreement by 
Client. Upon payment in full by Client, Consultant may, upon written 
agreement of both parties, resume services under the Agreement and 
the time schedule and compensation shall be equitably adjusted to 
compensate for the period of suspension plus any other reasonable 
time and expense necessary for Consultant to resume performance. 

e) Payment of invoices is in no case subject to unilateral discounting or 
setoffs by Client and payment is due regardless of suspension or 
termination of the Agreement by either party. f) Retainer shall be paid 
to Consultant by Client prior to commencement of services. This 
retainer shall be applied to the final invoice for services provided 
under this Agreement.

7.0 Permit, Agency and Application Fees - Client shall be responsible 
for and pay all project-related fees including, but not limited to,
Lobbyist registration, permitting, filing, recording, inspection, plan 
review, DRI, PUD, rezoning and impact fees. Any mutually agreed-
upon project-related fee up to $150 may be paid by Consultant and 
invoiced as a reimbursable expense by Client.

8.0 Collection Costs - In the event that any invoice or portion thereof 
remains unpaid for more than thirty (30) days following the invoice
date, Consultant may initiate legal action to enforce the compensation 
provision of the Agreement. Consultant is entitled to collect any 
judgment or settlement sums due, reasonable attorney fees, court 
costs, interest and expenses incurred by Consultant in connection with 
the collection of any amount due under the Agreement.

9.0 Reimbursable Expenses - Project-related expenses such as travel, 
lodging, per diem, long distance communications, postage, shipping, 
reproductions, approved subcontracted services and other necessary 
and customary costs shall be paid to Consultant by Client. These 
reimbursable expenses shall be compensated at:

Unit prices per Consultant’s Rate Schedule.
Out-of-pocket / Other Production Expenses billed at a multiplier of 
1.10 to cover processing costs.
Posting of public notice signs: Labor and material costs associated 
with the posting of public notice signs will be a reimbursable 
expense.

10.0 Taxes - Any government-imposed taxes or fees shall be added to 
the invoice and paid by Client to Consultant for services under the 
Agreement.

11.0 Indemnification - a) Client agrees, to the fullest extent permitted 
by law, to indemnify and hold harmless Consultant, its officers, 
directors, employees and independent sub-consultants against all 
damages, liabilities or costs including reasonable attorneys fees and 
defense costs, arising out of, or connected with, the Agreement or 
performance by any of the parties above named of the services under 
the Agreement, except those damages, liabilities or costs attributed to 
the negligent acts or negligent failure to act by Consultant.

b) Client agrees that as Client’s sole and exclusive remedy, any claim, 
demand or suit shall be directed and/or asserted only against 
Consultant, a Florida corporation, and not against any of Consultant’s 
individual employees, officers or directors.

c) Client agrees to indemnify Consultant, its officers, directors, 
employees and independent sub-consultants against all damages, 
liabilities or costs arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 
Agreement or the performance by any of the parties above-named of 
the services under the Agreement by any third party.

_______ 

ht\Ad M k Page 17



Terracina Irrigation and SFWMD Permitting Proposal (P23-270) 
June 1, 2023
Page 6 of 9 

Proposal No: P23-270 

                                         Initial: CH_______ Client: _______

C:\Users\awilbur\Dropbox\Work Tonight\Ads -Marketing Info - Proposals\P23-270 Terracina Irrigation and Permitting Proposal.doc

12.0 Limitation of Liability - In recognition of the relative risks and 
benefits of the project to both Client and Consultant, Client agrees to 
the fullest extent permitted by law, to limit the liability of Consultant 
and/or its employees, officers, directors, partners, agents and/or 
representatives to Client and/or any person and/or entity claiming by 
and/or through Client for any and all claims, losses, costs, damages or 
claim’s expenses from any cause or causes, including, but not limited 
to, attorney fees and costs resulting from Consultant’s negligent acts, 
errors and/or omissions. The total liability of Consultant to Client shall 
in no event exceed $1,000,000.00

13.0 Instruments of Service Ownership - a) All reports, plans,
specifications, electronic files, field data, notes and other documents 
and instruments prepared by Consultant as the Agreement’s 
instruments of service shall remain the property of Consultant. 
Consultant shall retain all common law, statutory and other reserved 
rights, including the copyright thereto.

b) Instruments of service by Consultant are for the sole use of Client 
and are not to be copied or distributed, in any manner, to a third 
party, without the express written permission of Consultant.
Electronic information or files are for informational purposes only. It is 
the responsibility of Client to verify the accuracy of the information
therein and to hold Consultant harmless for any damages that may 
result from the use of the information. Client at his own cost shall be 
responsible for validating any and all electronic information provided. 
Electronic information including but not limited to the consultants 
design files, illustrative graphics and or design details shall not be
distributed or used for any purpose without the consultant’s written 
permission. This provision shall apply to the client and any other 
consultant working for or with the client.

14.0 Governing Law - Client and Consultant agree that the Agreement 
and any legal actions concerning said Agreement shall be governed by
the laws of the State of Florida.

15.0 Mediations/Dispute Resolution - a) To resolve any conflicts 
which might arise during the performance of Consultant’s services 
under the Agreement, or during the construction of the Project, 
and/or following the completion of the project, Client and Consultant
agree that all disputes, pertaining to the performance of services by 
Consultant, shall be first submitted to non-binding mediation. Failure 
by any party to fully comply with the pre-suit mediation provision 
shall, upon finding by a court and/or jury, constitute a waiver of this 
condition precedent. The fees and/or costs of mediation shall be 
equally borne by the parties to the Agreement.

b) In the event of litigation, disputes shall be resolved in the circuit 
court of the Florida County in which the Project is located under the 
Agreement. The prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to 
recover from the non-prevailing party all reasonable attorney fees, 
taxable court costs, expert witness fees and costs, demonstrative 
evidence costs, and such other reasonable fees and/or costs generally 
associated with the litigation of such matters, as determined upon 
hearing, post-trial, by the court.

c) Irrespective of any contract provision or obligation of either party 
hereunder pursuant to contract or agreement with person(s) and/or 
entity (ies) not specifically named Herein, Consultant shall not be 
obligated to participate in, nor be a named party in, any arbitration 
proceeding without the express written consent of Consultant.

16.0 Delays - a) In the event the project under the Agreement is 
delayed for a period of more than fifteen (15) calendar days by any act 
or omission by Client or any other causes beyond Consultant’s 
exclusive control, Client agrees that Consultant is not responsible for 

any and all damages arising directly or indirectly from such delays. In 
addition, if the delays resulting from any such causes increase the cost 
or time required by Consultant to perform its services in an orderly 
and efficient manner, Consultant shall be entitled to an equitable 
adjustment in schedule and/or compensation prior to re-commencing 
work on the project.

b) Client recognizes and agrees that factors both within and without 
Consultant’s control may delay the work performance, permit 
issuance, design and construction of the project. Client agrees that it 
shall not be entitled to any claim for damages due to hindrances or 
delays from any cause whatsoever including, but not limited to: the 
production of contract documents; review of documents by any
government agency; issuance of permits from any government 
agency; beginning or completion of construction; or performance of 
any task of the work pursuant to the agreement. Permitting is a 
regulatory function and Consultant does not guarantee issuance of
any permit. Agency reviews and permitting are deemed “factors” 
outside Consultant’s control.

17.0 Termination - The Agreement and the obligation to provide 
further services under the Agreement may be terminated by either 
party upon seven (7) days written notice in the event of substantial 
failure by the other party to perform in accordance with the terms
hereof through no fault of the terminating party. Consultant shall have
the right to terminate this Agreement for Consultant’s convenience 
and without cause upon giving the Client seven (7) days written 
notice. In the event of termination of the Agreement by either party, 
Client shall within fifteen (15) calendar days of termination, pay 
Consultant for all services rendered to date, all reimbursable costs and 
termination expenses incurred by Consultant up to the date of
termination, in accordance with the payment provisions of the 
Agreement.

18.0 Renegotiation of Fees - Consultant reserves the right to 
renegotiate fixed fees to reflect changes in price indices and pay scales
applicable to the period when services are rendered. 

19.0 Construction Phase - Construction phase Services are not 
included unless specifically provided for in the Special Provisions. 
Construction Phase Services include but are not limited to cost 
estimates to support surety, site visits, shop drawing review, requests 
for information, certification letters and similar services

Consultant shall not, during any site visits or as a result of observing 
Contractor’s (s’) work in progress, supervise, manage, direct or have 
control over Contractor’s (s’) work. Nor shall Consultant have any 
authority or responsibility for the means, methods, techniques,
sequences or procedures of construction selected by Contractor(s) for 
safety precautions and programs incident to the work of Contractor(s) 
or for any failure of Contractor(s) to comply with laws, rules, 
regulations, ordinances, codes or orders applicable to Contractor(s) 
furnishing and performing its work. Consultant can neither guarantee 
the performance of the construction contracts by Contractor(s) nor 
assume any responsibility for Contractor’s (s’) failure to finish and 
perform its work in accordance with the contract documents. 

20.0 Successors and Assigns - Neither party to the Agreement shall 
transfer, sublet or assign any rights under or interest in the Agreement 
(including, but without limitation, monies that may become due or 
monies that are due) without the prior written consent of the other 
party. Subcontracting to subconsultants normally contemplated by 
Consultant shall not be considered as an assignment for purposes of 
the Agreement. -  END OF DOCUMENT

_______ 

ght\Ads Mark Page 18



Terracina Irrigation and SFWMD Permitting Proposal (P23-270) 
June 1, 2023
Page 7 of 9 

Proposal No: P23-270 

Initial: CH:_______ Client:_______

2023 Rate Schedule - Professional Services

Staff Category      Hourly Rate
Clerical Assistant       $   58.00  
Administrative Assistant     $   60.00  

Designer $   90.00 
Graphic Designer      $   98.00  
Senior Graphic Designer     $ 110.00  
Irrigation Designer      $   95.00 
CADD Technician – Entry Level    $   70.00  
CADD Technician       $   90.00  
Senior CADD Technician     $   98.00  
Landscape Architect – Intern     $   88.00  
Certified Landscape Inspector    $   95.00 
Landscape Designer     $   95.00  
Landscape Architect     $ 115.00  
Senior Landscape Architect      $ 125.00  

Planning Technician     $   95.00  
Planner I – Land Planner     $ 105.00  
Planner II – Senior Land Planner    $ 130.00  
Planning Project Manager     $ 152.50  
Senior Project Manager     $ 175.00  

GIS Specialist       $   95.00  
Senior GIS Specialist     $ 115.00  

Client Services Manager     $ 155.00 
Project Manager      $ 165.00  
Principal        $ 215.00  
Expert Witness      $ 350.00  
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Arborist       $ 140.00 
Biologist       $ 100.00  
Senior Biologist      $ 135.00  
Environmental Scientist     $ 120.00  
Senior Environmental Scientist    $ 130.00  
Principal Environmental Specialist    $ 110.00  
Environmental CAD Technician    $   98.00  
Field Technician      $   95.00  
________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Contract Coordinator FDOT
Civil Engineer FPL
Emergency Preparedness Coordinator FPL
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Reimbursable Expenses Rate

Mileage / Travel expenses at the prevailing IRS rate:  www.irs.gov
Copies / Reproductions *
Postage and handling *

Out-of-Pocket  / Other Production Expenses Cost + 10%

*Charges for monthly expenses billed at a multiplier of 1.10 to cover processing costs

_______ __

Page 19



Terracina Irrigation and SFWMD Permitting Proposal (P23-270) 
June 1, 2023
Page 8 of 9 

Proposal No: P23-270 

Initial: CH:_______ Client:_______

Lobbyist Registration Notice

It is a primary value of Cotleur & Hearing to maintain compliance with applicable county and municipal 
ethics laws. CH has adopted the practice of registering clients (principals) for projects which meet the 
lobbyist registration criteria.  Once this Service Agreement is fully executed, Cotleur & Hearing will 
electronically complete and submit the mandatory lobbyist registration forms and pay their $25 fee.  Once 
the county/municipality processes our forms, an e-mail will be sent to you to authorize our lobbyist 
registration request.  If by the third e-mail they do not receive your response, the request will be invalid and
the $25 fee forfeited.  Therefore, it is important you respond promptly to their authorization e-mail.  

For Additional Information Please Visit:  
http://discover.pbcgov.org/legislativeaffairs/Pages/Lobbying_Regulations.aspx

_________

Page 20



Terracina Irrigation and SFWMD Permitting Proposal (P23-270) 
June 1, 2023
Page 9 of 9 

    Initial: CH:_______ Client:________________

Page 21



1280 N. Congress Ave., Suite 101, West Palm Beach, FL  33409
Tel. 561.655.1151                                    Fax. 561.832.9390

FIELD OBSERVATION REPORT
1280 N. Congress Ave., Suite 101
West Palm Beach, FL 33409  
Tel. 561.655.1151   Fax 561.832.9390
E-mail:  info@engenuitygroup.com
Website:  www.engenuitygroup.com

PROJECT: Terracina, CDD
PROJECT NO: 4028 DATE: March 30, 2023
CONTRACTOR: ARRIVAL TIME: 3:00
TYPE OF OBSERVATION: Lake Levels and
Erosion Areas

DEPARTURE TIME: 4:00

OBSERVATIONS:

SDS requested follow-up site visit to review lake levels and new Erosion areas on Lakes 
#6 and 10.  .

Lakes now appear slightly lower compared to photos from my site visit of May 20, 2022. 

As documented in my earlier field observation reports (repeated from my field report of 
May 2022 as follows):

Community is experiencing low lake levels in ALL lakes.  Lake # 2 has a 42" culvert that 
discharges stormwater from Jog Rd.  The invert elevation of this culvert is well above the
current lake water elevation, which is approximately 18" below the bleeder invert 
elevation of the control structure discharging to the LWDD L-4 canal.  Lake #2 is isolated 
from the other 11 lakes with it's own control structure.  A review of the construction plans 
shows this lake as an existing lake, apparently excavated prior to the Terracina 
development, solely for drainage of Jog Rd., and incorporated into the development for 
aesthetics and further stormwater storage.  The other 11 lakes are NOT connected to 
Lake #2, but are interconnected with each other and discharge thru the other 2 
independent control structures.

Based on the appearance of low lake levels, I offer the following factors that may be 
influencing these lower levels at this time: 

1. We have been in the “dry” season for the last several months.  Rainy season
traditionally begins June 1 and I expect with increased rain, the lake levels will rebound.

Page 22



1280 N. Congress Ave., Suite 101, West Palm Beach, FL  33409
Tel. 561.655.1151                                    Fax. 561.832.9390

2. Irrigation withdrawls from lakes -  The common area irrigation system draws from the
lake system, which are all interconnected.  While this is common practice, it may be
contributing to the overall drawdown of the lake system.  A recharging well system could
be explored to help sustain the lake levels.  A system design would be needed and the
proper agency permitting for "Water Use" would be required to implement such a
system.   These systems are common in South Florida.

3. Terracina is in close proximity to a regional water supply wellfield located at the NE
corner of Jog Rd and Belvedere Rd.  This wellfield is owned and operated by the PBC
Water Utilities Department and has been long established for regional public water
supply, including Terracina.  These well fields create a groundwater drawdown and a
cone of influence that most likely includes the area in and around the Terracina lake
system.  Further research would be needed to approximate the effect these wellfields
may be having on the Terracina lake system.

In conclusion, I have been documenting the lower lakes levels in Terracina for several 
years in my annual reports.

 Items 1 and 3 above are issues that cannot be controlled or influenced by Terracina 
action, without significant cost, namely lake lining.

Item 2 can be discussed further for study and implementation, if desired. 

Two new lake bank erosion areas have been noticed by the HOA and I visited each one, 
on lake #6 and lake #10.  Both of these areas developed since my annual report in 
August 2022 and have grown substantially large.  Increased runoff velocity likely due to 
low water levels have speeded the erosion process.  Photos of these areas are attached 
to this report.

As expected, both of these erosion areas are a result of overland drainage runoff that 
accumulated between houses and is directed toward the lake.  These type of erosion 
areas have occurred before, with several “minor” ones noted in the last annual report.
The repair proposal by All State is the correct repair methodology for each one.  The lake 
#6 location is very close to a drainage culvert.  While a leaking culvert joint under the 
erosion area may be causing the erosion, it is not likely based on my observations.  As a 
precaution, this culvert should be cleaned and televised (All State is capable of this 
work), to insure the culvert is stable.

 Additionally,  the culvert in the NW corner of lake #6 is 90% silted full (photo attached) 
and should be cleaned.   This has become apparent with the low lake levels. 

I am also resending you the graphic from my 2022 annual report which identifies several 
lake bank erosion areas from years past.   These remain minor in nature but may be 

Page 23



1280 N. Congress Ave., Suite 101, West Palm Beach, FL  33409
Tel. 561.655.1151                                    Fax. 561.832.9390

exacerbated with the low water levels.   I did observe them on this site visit and they did 
not appear to have “grown”. 

REPORT BY: Keith B. Jackson, P.E.

COPIES TO:  Sylvia Bethel,  SDS

Page 24



LW
D

D
 L

-4
 C

A
N

A
L

JOG RD

B
E

LV
E

D
E

R
E

 R
D

FLORID
A T

URNPIK
E (T

OLL R
D)

LA
KE 1 LA
KE 2

LA
KE 3

LA
KE 4

LA
KE 5

LA
KE 6

LA
KE 8

LA
KE 10LA
KE 9

LA
KE 11

LA
KE 12

A
LI

SO
 A

VE

D
EL

 V
ER

D
E 

B
LV

D C
R

ES
TA

 C
IR

TRIANA ST
G

A
ZE

TT
A

 W
A

Y

GA
ZE

TT
A 

W
AY

CL
EA

RY
 R

D

LA
K

E 
#2

O
U

TF
A

LL
LA

K
E 

#6
O

U
TF

A
LL

LA
K

E 
#1

2
O

U
TF

A
LL

VA
C

A
N

T
C

IV
IC

SI
TE

N
.T

.S

R
EP

A
IR

18
" 

O
U

TF
A

LL
C

U
LV

ER
T

C
LE

A
N

O
U

T
24

" 
O

U
TF

A
LL

C
U

LV
ER

T

8

R
EP

A
IR

18
" 

O
U

TF
A

LL
C

U
LV

ER
T

8

R
EP

A
IR

30
" 

O
U

TF
A

LL
C

U
LV

ER
T

8

LA
KE 7

8
8

R
EP

A
IR

ER
O

SI
O

N
A

R
EA

8 R
EP

A
IR

ER
O

SI
O

N
A

R
EA

R
EP

A
IR

ER
O

SI
O

N
A

R
EA

8 R
EP

A
IR

ER
O

SI
O

N
A

R
EA

R
EP

A
IR

ER
O

SI
O

N
A

R
EA

8

Page 25



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

SHORELINE RESTORATION & EROSION CONTROL AGREEMENT 
 
 
This agreement, dated June 5, 2023, is made between ALLSTATE RESOURCE 
MANAGEMENT, INC. (ARMI) and CUSTOMER: 
 

Terracina Community Development District 
c/o Special District Services  
2501A Burns Road     561-630-4922 Ext 227 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410       sbethel@sdsinc.org 
  

Both Customer and ARMI agree to the following terms and conditions: 
 

1. ARMI will provide the following services on behalf of the customer in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement at the following 
surface water site: 

 
Shoreline Restoration and Erosion Repair services located at Terracina in 
Palm Beach County, Florida. 

 
Includes material, equipment and labor to complete the project. 
 

2. Customer agrees to pay ARMI the following amount during the term of this 
agreement for these specific erosion control services: 

 
Geo-Tube Method: Repair edge of lake bank areas  
 

 Clear shoreline areas of debris/trash to prepare for geo-textile tubes.  
 Install sleeves to protect irrigation intake and gutter downspout drainage 

pipes which will protect the pipes and allow for future replacement 
 Install six (6’) foot geo-textile tube along the lake bank areas.  
 Dredge sand from the center of the lake and fill geo-textile tubes.   
 Cover geo-textile tube with additional layer of geo-textile fabric for 

additional protection from iguanas and other wildlife   
 Install sand over geo-textile tube and along reclaimed shoreline to create 

a natural slope 

 Install sod over newly reclaimed areas (Note: CUSTOMER is 
responsible for maintenance of sod once installed.) 

 Secure sod with eight-inch (8”) ground pins  
 

       

Page 26



SHORELINE RESTORATION & EROSION CONTROL – Geo-Tube         Page 2 
 
 
Investment Per Lake: 
 

Lake #1 $133,250.00  Lake #7 $110,825.00 
Lake #2 $110,500.00  Lake #8 $133,250.00 
Lake #3 $139,750.00  Lake #9 $76,050.00 
Lake #4 $110,500.00  Lake #10 $72,800.00 
Lake #5 $141,050.00  Lake #11 $211,575.00 
Lake #6 $133,900.00  Lake #12 $175,500.00 

 
 
Permitting, engineering, engineered drawings and certifications (if required) are not included 
in the proposal. 
 
Sprinkler heads will be marked by the landscaper; otherwise ARMI will not be 
responsible for damage to them during the course of work.  ARMI will repair any 
exposed sprinkler heads damaged during erosion work on a timely manner. 
 
Staging areas will be designated before the start of work.  ARMI will access the lakes at 
designated areas and sod repaired areas to bring the property back to complete 
restoration.  (Note: CUSTOMER is responsible for maintenance of sod once installed.) 
 
ARMI is not responsible for damage to any underground irrigation, headwalls, piping, 
electrical, trees or any lines not noted on the as-builds, marked by landscaper or not 
located by Sunshine Locating Services. 
 
All material is guaranteed to be as specified, and the above work to be performed in 
accordance with the maps and specifications and completed in a workmanlike 
manner.  A ten (10) year warranty on work and materials is included, excluding 
sod. 
 
Guarantee on materials does not include the loss of material due to ‘Acts of God’ 
such as hurricanes, floods, fires or other catastrophic events, nor does it include 
losses due to theft, lack of adequate irrigation, vandalism or negligence by others, or 
other factors outside the control of our organization.   
 

3. Schedule of payment:  
 

 One-Third Mobilization Deposit 
 One-Third upon installation of geo-textile tube 
 Balance due upon installation of sod 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



SHORELINE RESTORATION & EROSION CONTROL - Geo-Tube  Page 3 
 
 

4. The offer contained in this agreement is valid for thirty (30) days only and 
must be returned to our offices for acceptance within that period.  After thirty 
(30) days, the price may be adjusted according to materials availability and 
market. 

 
5. Proof of insurance included.   

 
6. This agreement constitutes the entire agreement of ARMI and the 

CUSTOMER.  No oral or written alterations of the terms contained herein 
shall be deemed valid unless made in writing and accepted by an authorized 
agent of both ARMI and CUSTOMER. 

         
ALLSTATE RESOURCE MANAGEMENT, INC.  CUSTOMER ACCEPTANCE  

       The above prices, specifications  
       and conditions are satisfactory  
       and are hereby accepted and the 
       signers acknowledge that they  
       are authorized to execute this 
       document. 

  
  
  
__________________________   __________________________ 
ALLSTATE (Signature)    CUSTOMER (Signature) 
 
 
 
__________________________   __________________________ 
NAME / TITLE (Printed)    NAME / TITLE (Printed) 
   
 
 
__________________________   ______________________ 
DATE       DATE 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
03.Terracina.Erosion.Pro 

Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-03 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
TERRACINA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, 
ESTABLISHING A REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2023/2024 AND SETTING THE TIME AND LOCATION OF 
SAID DISTRICT MEETINGS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary for the Terracina Community Development District 

("District") to establish a regular meeting schedule for fiscal year 2023/2024; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the District has set a regular meeting schedule, 

location and time for District meetings for fiscal year 2023/2024 which is attached hereto and 

made a part hereof as Exhibit “A”. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

OF THE TERRACINA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, PALM BEACH 
COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The above recitals are hereby adopted. 

 
Section 2. The regular meeting schedule, time and location for meetings for fiscal 

year 2023/2024 which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is hereby adopted and authorized to be 

published. 

 
PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 10th day of July, 2023. 

 

 
ATTEST: TERRACINA 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:                                                                       By:                
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 
 

Page 32



TERRACINA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024 REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Supervisors of the Terracina Community 
Development District will hold Regular Meetings at 9:00 a.m. in a Meeting Room of The Nexus 
at Vista Park located at 2101 Vista Parkway, West Palm Beach, Florida 33411, on the following 
dates: 

October 09, 2023 
November 13, 2023 
December 11, 2023 

January 8, 2024 
February 12, 2024 

March 04, 2024 
April 08, 2024 
May 13, 2024 
June 10, 2024 
July 08, 2024 

August 12, 2024 
September 09, 2024 

 
The purpose of the meetings is to conduct any business coming before the Board.  The meetings 
are open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Florida law.  
Copies of the Agendas for any of the meetings may be obtained from the District’s website or by 
contacting the District Manager at (561) 630-4922 and/or toll free at 1-877-737-4922 prior to the 
date of the particular meeting. 
 
From time to time one or more Supervisors may participate by telephone; therefore, at the location 
of these meetings there will be a speaker telephone present so that interested persons can attend 
the meetings at the above location and be fully informed of the discussions taking place either in 
person or by telephone communication.  Meetings may be continued as found necessary to a time 
and place specified on the record. 
 
If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at these 
meetings, such person will need a record of the proceedings and such person may need to insure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made at his or her own expense and which record 
includes the testimony and evidence on which the appeal is based. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring 
special accommodations or an interpreter to participate at any of these meetings should contact the 
District Manager at (561) 630-4922 and/or toll free at 1-877-737-4922 at least seven (7) days prior 
to the date of the particular meeting. 
 
Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised notice. 
 
TERRACINA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
www.terracinacdd.org 
 
PUBLISH:  PALM BEACH POST      09/30/2022 

Page 33



RESOLUTION 2023-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
TERRACINA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
PROVIDING FOR THE APPOINTMENT OF A RECORDS 
MANAGEMENT LIAISON OFFICER; PROVIDING THE DUTIES 
OF THE RECORDS MANAGEMENT LIAISON OFFICER; 
ADOPTING A RECORDS RETENTION POLICY; DETERMINING 
THE ELECTRONIC RECORD TO BE THE OFFICIAL RECORD; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Terracina Community Development District (the “District”) is a 
local unit of special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, 
Florida Statutes; and  

WHEREAS, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, authorizes the District to adopt rules to 
govern the administration of the District and to adopt resolutions as may be necessary for 
the conduct of District business; and 

WHEREAS, Section 257.36(5), Florida Statutes, requires the District to establish 
and maintain an active and continuing program for the economical and efficient 
management of records and to provide for the appointment of a records management liaison 
officer (“Records Management Liaison Officer”); and 

WHEREAS, the District desires for the Records Management Liaison Officer to be 
an employee of the District or an employee of the District Manager; and 

WHEREAS, the District desires to authorize the District’s records custodian to 
appoint a Records Management Liaison Officer, which may or may not be the District’s 
records custodian; and 

WHEREAS, the District desires to prescribe duties of the Records Management 
Liaison Officer and provide for the assignment of additional duties; and 

WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Supervisors (“Board”) finds that it is in the best 
interests of the District to adopt by resolution a records retention policy (the “Records 
Retention Policy”) for immediate use and application. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE TERRACINA COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, THAT: 

SECTION 1. The District hereby authorizes the District’s records custodian to 
appoint a Records Management Liaison Officer and report such appointment to the 
appropriate State of Florida agencies.  A Records Management Liaison Officer shall be an 
employee of the District or the District Manager.  The Board, and the District’s records 
custodian, shall each have the individual power to remove the Records Management 

Page 34



Liaison Officer at any time for any reason.  Immediately following the removal or 
resignation of a Records Management Liaison Officer, the District’s records custodian 
shall appoint a replacement Records Management Liaison Officer. 

SECTION 2. The duties of the Records Management Liaison Officer shall include 
the following: 

A. Serve as the District’s contact with the Florida Department of State, State 
Library and Archives of Florida; 

B. Coordinate the District’s records inventory;  

C. Maintain records retention and disposition forms;  

D. Coordinate District records management training;  

E. Develop records management procedures consistent with the Records 
Retention Policy, as amended as provided herein;  

F. Participate in the development of the District’s development of electronic 
record keeping systems;  

G. Submit annual compliance statements;  

H. Work with the Florida Department of State, State Library and Archives of 
Florida to establish individual retention schedules for the District, from time 
to time and as may be necessary; and 

I. Such other duties as may be assigned by the Board or the District’s records 
custodian in the future. 

SECTION 3. The District hereby adopts as its Records Retention Policy the 
applicable provisions of Section 257.36(5), Florida Statutes, the rules adopted by the 
Division of Library and Information Services of the Department of State (“Division”) 
pursuant to Section 257.36, Florida Statutes, and the General Records Schedules 
established by the Division.  However, the District will retain certain records longer than 
required by the General Records Schedules established by the Division as set forth in 
Exhibit A.  To the extent the above statute, rules or schedules are amended or supplemented 
in the future, the District’s Records Retention Policy shall automatically incorporate such 
amendment or supplement provided that such automatic amendment shall not reduce the 
retention times set forth in Exhibit A.  The Records Retention Policy shall remain in full 
force and effect until such time as the Board amends the Policy. 

SECTION 4. In accordance with section 668.50, Florida Statutes, and section 
119.01, Florida Statutes, the Board finds that the electronic record shall be considered the 
official record and any paper originals are hereby duplicates which may be disposed of 
unless required to be preserved by any applicable statute, rule or ordinance. 

Page 35



SECTION 5.   If any provision of this resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the 
other provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 

SECTION 6. This Resolution shall become effective upon its passage; shall 
replace, supplant, and supersede any prior policy or resolution of the District regarding 
records retention; and shall remain in effect unless rescinded or repealed.   

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the District Board of Supervisors, this 10th 
day of July, 2023. 

ATTEST:     TERRACINA COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
 
_____________________________  ____________________________________ 
 
Print name: ___________________  Print name: __________________________ 
       Secretary / Assistant Secretary                  Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
Exhibit A:  Amendments to General Records Schedules Established by the Division 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 36



Exhibit A 
 

Amendments to General Records Schedules established by the Division 
 

ADVERTISEMENTS: LEGAL (Item #25) 
The District shall retain mailed and published legal advertisements, and corresponding affidavits, relating to 
proceedings under uniform method of collection of debt assessments permanently.  The District shall retain 
mailed and published legal advertisements, and corresponding affidavits, relating to the levy of assessments 
securing bonds for five (5) fiscal years provided applicable audits have been released, or until three (3) 
calendar years after related bonds are redeemed, whichever is later. 
 
AUDITS: INDEPENDENT (Item #56) 
The District shall retain the record copy of independent audits for ten (10) fiscal years or until three (3) 
calendar years after all related bonds are redeemed, whichever is later. 
 
DISBURSEMENT RECORDS:  DETAIL (Item #340) 
The District shall retain the record copy of disbursement records relating to the use of bonds for five (5) fiscal 
years provided applicable audits have been released or until three (3) calendar years after related bonds are 
redeemed, whichever is later. 
 
DISBURSEMENT RECORDS:  SUMMARY (Item #341) 
The District shall retain the record copy of disbursement records relating to the use of bonds for ten (10) 
fiscal years provided applicable audits have been released or until three (3) calendar years after related bonds 
are redeemed, whichever is later. 
 
FINANCIAL REPORTS:  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ANNUAL REPORTS (Item #107) 
The District shall retain the record copy of disbursement records relating to the use of bonds for ten (10) 
fiscal years provided applicable audits have been released or until three (3) calendar years after all related 
bonds are redeemed, whichever is later. 
 
INCIDENT REPORT FILES (Item #241) 
The District shall retain incident reports for five (5) anniversary years from the date of the incident. 
 
MINUTES:  OFFICIAL MEETINGS (PRELIMINARY/AUDIO RECORDINGS/VIDEO RECORDINGS 
(Item #4) 
The District shall retain audio recordings of board of supervisor meetings for five (5) calendar years after 
adoption of the official minutes. 
 
PROJECT FILES:  CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT (Item #136) 
The District shall retain the record copy of project files for projects funded with bonds for ten (10) fiscal 
years after completion of the project provided applicable audits have been released or until three (3) calendar 
years after all related bonds are redeemed, whichever is later. 
 
REAL PROPERTY RECORDS:  CONDEMNATION/DEMOLITION (Item #364) 
The District shall retain the record copy of project files for condemnation/demolition projects funded with 
bonds for five (5) anniversary years after final action or until three (3) calendar years after all related bonds 
are redeemed, whichever is later.  The record copy of deeds and easements shall be kept permanently. 
 
REAL PROPERTY RECORDS:  PROPERTY ACQUIRED (Item #172) 
The District shall retain the record copy of documents related to property acquisitions funded with bonds for 
three (3) fiscal years after final disposition of the property provided applicable audits have been released or 
until three (3) calendar years after all related bonds are redeemed, whichever is later.  The record copy of 
deeds and easements shall be kept permanently. 
 

Page 37



Ability of Personnel (10 Points). 

Proposer’s Experience (10 Points). 

Understanding of Scope of Work (10 Points). 

Ability to Furnish the Required Services (10 Points). 

Price (10 Points). 

Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Terracina
Community Development District

    Financial Report For
June 2023

Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49


	Terracina Community Development District - July 10, 2023 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	June 12, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Public Hearing
	Proof of Publication
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Final Budget

	Consider Approval of Irrigation & Permitting Proposal
	Consider Allstate’s Shoreline Restoration & Erosion Control Proposal (Recommendation from Engineer’s Report)
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Meeting Schedule
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-04 – Adopting a Records Retention Policy
	Consider Appointment of Audit Committee & Approval of Evaluation Criteria
	Financial Report




